City of
Dublin

OHIO, USA

MEETING MINUTES

Planning & Zoning Commission
Thursday, March 6, 2025

CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chair Way called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in Council Chamber and welcomed
everyone to the March 6, 2025 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. He stated that the
meeting also could be accessed at the City’s website. Public comments on the cases were welcome
from meeting attendees and from those viewing at the City’s website.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mr. Way led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Commission members present:  Gary Alexander, Jamey Chinnock, Jason Deschler, Dan Garvin,
Kathy Harter, Kim Way

Commission members absent: Rebecca Call

Staff members present: Thaddeus Boggs, Jenny Rauch, Bassem Bitar, Sarah Tresouthick
Holt, Rati Singh, Tina Wawszkiewicz, Heidi Rose, Josh Reinicke

ACCEPTANCE OF MEETING DOCUMENTS

Mr. Deschler moved, Ms. Harter seconded acceptance of the documents into the record and
approval of the 02-20-25 meeting minutes.

Vote: Mr. Chinnock, yes; Mr. Way, yes; Ms. Harter, yes; Mr. Alexander, yes; Mr. Garvin, yes; Mr.
Deschler, yes.

[Motion carried 6-0.]

Mr. Way stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) is an advisory board to City Council
when rezoning and platting of property are under consideration. In such cases, City Council will
receive recommendations from the Commission and make the decision. In other cases, the
Commission has the final decision-making responsibility. The Rules and Regulations of the Planning
and Zoning Commission state that no new agenda items are to be introduced after 10:30 p.m.
Anyone who intends to address the Commission on administrative cases must be sworn in. Mr.
Way explained the hearing process that would be followed.

Mr. Way swore in staff and audience members who anticipated providing testimony.

CASE REVIEW

CONSENT CASE



Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — March 6, 2025
Page 2 of 21

Mr. Way stated that one case is eligible for the Consent Agenda this evening.

Case #25-009AFDP

INEOS — Amended Final Development Plan

Request for review and approval of an Amended Final Development Plan for re-facing
an existing ground sign. The 2.95 -acre site is zoned PCD, Planned Commerce District,
Perimeter Center, and is located at 6400 Perimeter Loop Road.

There was no request to remove the case from the Consent Agenda and no public comment.

Mr. Alexander moved, Mr. Garvin seconded approval of the Consent Case with the following
conditions:
1. The applicant re-face the existing wayfinding signs to match the re-facing of the ground
sign.
2. The applicant restore the existing ground sign brick base to its original state.
3. The applicant shall submit a landscape plan to meet the code requirements for staff review
and approval prior to obtaining a CZPA.

Vote: Ms. Harter, yes; Mr. Deschler, yes; Mr. Alexander, yes; Mr. Chinnock, yes; Mr. Way, yes; Mr.
Garvin, yes.
[Motion carried: 6-0]

Case #25-017CP

The Bogey Inn — Concept Plan

Request for review and non-binding feedback for construction of a new structure,
accessory amenities, and associated site improvements. The 3.36-acre site, made up
of 3 parcels, is zoned R, Rural District and EU, Exceptional Uses District (WTWP) and
located at 6013 Glick Road.

Applicant Presentation

Troy Allen, Rise Brands, 10122 Concord Road, Dublin, stated that he has been a Dublin resident
for over 20 years. Tonight he is talking about the Bogey Inn. This site has sat empty for two years
now. It is in his backyard and is an icon in Dublin and Shawnee Hills. They knew something special
needed to happen here and have developed the site into an entertainment campus. The brand
vision is to be the social destination where connections are made and the timeless traditions of golf
are celebrated. The brand position is blending golf's heritage and honor with a fun, lively
atmosphere in a putting experience designed for novices and enthusiasts alike. This is a putting
course and is great for families and adults. He shared graphics and marketing materials. The site
plan was shown with Glick Road positioned at the top. The building has been moved back slightly
and turned. It was pushed over to utilize the existing traffic signal and intersection. Traffic is terrible
here. A traffic study is being done and they are considering ways to improve the situation. They
wanted to add a lot of activation. There is a front patio area and a main courtyard area and
everything flows around that courtyard out to the greens. They want activity to be seen from Glick
Road. An exit onto Dublin Road is proposed. There is an outdoor bar that will be used year-round
and a raised patio. There is a corporate events center with 9 holes that is climate controlled and
self-contained. The desire is for the project to be very interactive. There are fire pits throughout




Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — March 6, 2025
Page 3 of 21

the site. Inside is another bar and a mini-food hall. They wanted more food options, so they are
partnering with certain vendors to have permanent commissary kitchens on the campus. There is
a portico coming in from the traffic light. They are leaning into the mid-century style of the Bogey
Inn with the roof lines, angles and materials. The main dining room had an angled roof, and they
are bringing in that design element. There will be a sunken lounge. They have 18 original, stained-
glass windows from the Bogey Inn that will be worked into the design. They will be using a lot of
vegetation/landscaping and want the concept to be indoor/outdoor as much as possible.

Staff Presentation

Ms. Holt stated that this is a Concept Plan which allows for non-binding feedback for the applicant.
Items of discussion are land use, site layout, and integration with surroundings. A concept plan
review is an optional step for a project of this size. For a rezoning and preliminary development
plan (PDP), this commission will make a recommendation to City Council. The site is located in the
very northeast corner of Dublin, adjacent to the Village of Shawnee Hills and the City of Columbus.
Envision Dublin identifies the site with two future land uses. The northern area is mixed-use
neighborhood, which envisions a walkable neighborhood service area with one to three stories of
building height and a lot of street activation. The south portion is agricultural or rural, which
envisions agricultural uses or single family residential. Preserved natural features are a goal of this
area. The Commission is being asked if it supports the land use as proposed. Photos of Glick Road
environs were shared.
The proposed main access is opposite of Shawnee Trail at the new signal. The site slopes to the
east toward the Scioto River by way of Glick Park. Three buildings are proposed. The main building
has a food hall, lounge and rooftop spaces. The second building is an outdoor bar and the third is
an event space with indoor putting. There is a cell tower on the site. Lot coverage is likely an issue.
Staff will be asking the Commission if they support the site layout and buffering. Feedback is also
requested on the proposed architecture, specifically the style, massing and height. No materials
are identified at this early stage. Building three must have four-sided architecture. There is concern
about visible HVAC on the roof to be discussed at next steps.
Ms. Holt provided the following questions for discussion by the Commission:
1) Does the Commission support the proposed land use?
2) If the proposed land use is supported, does the Commission support the site layout,
including increased lot coverage?
3) If the proposed land use is supported, does the Commission support the architectural style,
massing, and building height?
4) 1If the proposed land use is supported, what are the Commission’s expectations for project
buffering and mitigation of off-site impacts?
5) Any other considerations by the Commission.

Commission Questions

Mr. Garvin asked if there is concern with the second access point to Dublin Road interfering with
the security access to the water tower. Ms. Holt stated that they will be completely separate.

Mr. Deschler asked what kind of conversations have been had with Shawnee Hills relative to the
streetscape. Ms. Rauch stated that the City Manager and she had the opportunity to meet with
several representatives of Shawnee Hills and the applicant to preview the project. They are in the
process of developing a main street plan that outlines their streetscape. City staff has asked to see



Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — March 6, 2025
Page 4 of 21

the plan in order to identify how this project could integrate with it. Much discussion was held
around how this proposal interacts with the street. They were supportive of the layout and
interaction with the street. Staff wants to ensure this project seamlessly integrates with Shawnee
Hills” plan.

Mr. Deschler asked about a multiuse trail. Ms. Rauch stated that staff is asking for any plans, so
this seamlessly integrates with them.

Mr. Deschler asked the applicant if they have had separate discussions with the Village of Shawnee
Hills outside of those with City staff. Mr. Allen answered that the City was present at all formal
meetings. The Village is excited about this project.

Mr. Deschler asked if there have been conversations with the City of Coumbus regarding traffic.
Ms. Wawszkiewicz stated that if this project advances to the next phase of PDP, that would require
a traffic impact study. Staff has started those conversations with Shawnee Hills, the Ohio
Department of Transportation and City of Columbus. The physical constraint is the dam, so there
can be no widening of Glick Road there.

Mr. Deschler asked for more information regarding access on Dublin Road. Ms. Wawszkiewicz
stated that staff is reacting to the applicant’s plan. Mr. Allen stated that for them it was natural to
come from the light. The secondary entrance is to alleviate traffic. He thinks people will exit onto
Dublin Road. The curb cut is already there. He added that it is a completely separate road from
the water tower access.

Mr. Chinnock stated that the site plan does not show that access. Ms. Holt stated that a comment
from staff as a next step as part of a planned unit development (PUD), is that secondary access
needs to be shown and details provided.

Brent LaCount, Principal, Design Collective, 151 E. Nationwide Blvd., Columbus, stated that the
secondary access was shown on the concept plan submittal but is not part of the presentation this
evening.

Mr. Way stated that the Commission is very interested in those details with the next submission.
Mr. Allen stated that much of that will come from the traffic study.

Mr. Boggs stated that the Commission is able to consider what they are being told. This is non-
binding feedback for this development track. Ms. Rauch stated that it is at the very end of the
Commission’s packet. The drawing indicates how it is coming from the south, but there is a graphic
box there blocking some details. The applicant is proposing the secondary egress, and staff will vet
that as the project moves forward.

Ms. Holt stated that the Commission is discussing land use, relationship to other uses, style of
architecture, massing, and the arrangement of uses.

Mr. Deschler asked staff about a potential concern from the Fire Department about the ability for
vehicles to make certain turns. Ms. Holt stated that at PDP, the layout will have to conform to the
auto-turn exhibits. That will be reviewed by the Fire Department.

Mr. Deschler asked if the golf holes will be turf and if there will be grass around the holes. Mr. Allen
stated that the lanes will be turf but live foliage will be around that. The overall percentage will
probably be 50-50 turf to natural plantings. Mr. Deschler asked about continued maintenance on
turf material. Mr. Allen stated that there will be sand underneath with rubber pellets. At Pins



Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting Minutes — March 6, 2025
Page 5 of 21

Mechanicals locations, they have maintenance machines and typically swap out the turf every ten
years.

Mr. Deschler asked if the applicant is considering fencing. Mr. Allen stated that much of the
perimeter is handled by landscaping. Mr. Deschler asked about security of the greens. Mr. Allen
stated that if they do a fence, it will be open. They must secure the site from a liquor control
standpoint. They will control access points.

Mr. Deschler asked the applicant how they intend to meet landscape requirements considering the
installation of all the turf. Mr. Allen stated that once they have the requirements, they will solve
for them. Ms. Holt stated that PUDs have a requirement but there is some flexibility with this.

Mr. Way stated that the applicant will get into those details at the next stage.

Mr. Deschler asked about conversations regarding parking and a potential shortfall. Mr. Allen stated
that they will meet requirements. Mr. Deschler asked if there is overflow consideration. Mr. Allen
stated that the Memorial Tournament is a partner on this project and they own the land. They will
have access to the rest of their parking. All overflow parking is currently on dirt and gravel. That
parking is not being considered because they want customer parking all paved. Mr. Way asked if
there will be designated land area for parking. Mr. Allen stated that the current paved lot meets
the requirements. Ms. Holt stated that they will be looking at opportunities for shared parking, and
all of that will be investigated at PDP.

In response to Mr. Deschler’s question about building materials, Mr. Allen stated that the building
will be made of cinderblock, steel and brick.

Mr. Deschler asked about food. Mr. Allen stated there will be four food commissaries.

In response to Mr. Allen’s question about details at this application stage, Mr. Way stated that the
purpose of this meeting is for the Commission to get familiar with the project.

Mr. Deschler asked about lighting. Mr. Allen stated that light pollution is a concern. They are
currently considering different types of lighting.

Mr. Alexander asked about jurisdiction and if the City of Columbus will control right-of-way
improvements. Ms. Waskiewicz stated that Dublin will continue to coordinate with those four
agencies mentioned earlier. The parcel would control a future sidewalk or paths. Dublin would have
some jurisdiction but would coordinate with adjacent agencies.

Mr. Alexander asked for more information about connectivity. Ms. Waskiewicz stated that there are
crossings and connections at that intersection, but more connectivity would be a longer-term goal.
Mr. Alexander stated that the staff report indicates that part of the parcel is zoned Washington
Township. Ms. Holt stated that is left over from when the property was annexed. The entire site
would be zoned PUD with the development text applying.

Mr. Alexander stated that this is a gateway into Dublin. He asked if there was any consideration
given to bringing the building closer to the street. Mr. Allen stated that they were more concerned
about the mass of the building potentially overpowering the road. They wanted a softer look.

Mr. Alexander asked about the sustainability of turf. Mr. Allen stated that they have spoken to
multiple vendors but have not selected the exact product. Mr. Alexander stated that will be
important.

Ms. Harter thanked the applicant for their presentation. She referenced connectivity and asked how
the look will integrate with area. Mr. Allen stated that if they were to try to make it work with other
existing development, it would be difficult as that area is a hodge podge of styles. Shawnee Hills
was pleased with the concept.



















































